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COUNTY EW ENT G OF N  K , VIR INIA Exhibit 23

Combining Balance Sheet
Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board
June 30, 2010

Total
School Nonmajor Total

Operating Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 928,892            $ 407,146           $ 1,336,038        
Receivables (net of allowance

for uncollectibles):
Accounts receivable 8,259               -                       8,259               

Due from other governmental units 2,072,295         44,518             2,116,813        
Total assets $ 3,009,446         $ 451,664           $ 3,461,110        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 759,882            $ 11,955             $ 771,837           
Accrued liabilities 2,248,932         50,369             2,299,301        
Deferred revenue 632                  -                       632                  

Total liabilities $ 3,009,446         $ 62,324             $ 3,071,770        

Fund balances:
Unreserved:

Undesignated $ -                       $ 389,340           $ 389,340           
Total fund balancesTotal fund balances $ -                     $ 389,340389,340         $ 389,340389,340          
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,009,446         $ 451,664           $ 3,461,110        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit 1) are
different because:

Total fund balances per above $ 389,340           

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Capital outlay  $    21,715,860 
Less: accumulated depreciation        (5,071,299) 16,644,561      

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences  $       (323,992)
OPEB Liability           (153,000) (476,992)          

Net s i i asset  of governmental act vit es $ 16,556,909      
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CO F INIAUNTY O  NEW KENT, VIRG Exhibit 24

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total
School Nonmajor Total

Operating Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Revenue fr tyom the use of money and proper $ 7,979                  $ 3,991                 $ 11,970               
Charges for services 30,550                568,357             598,907             
Miscellaneous 236,042              10,264               246,306             
Intergovernmental revenues:

Local government 9,288,598           -                        9,288,598          
Commonwealth 12,422,506         12,082               12,434,588        
Federal 2,470,108           272,578             2,742,686          

Total revenues $ 24,455,783         $ 867,272             $ 25,323,055        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Education $ 24,289,783         $ 788,939             $ 25,078,722        
Total expenditures $ 24,289,783         $ 788,939             $ 25,078,722        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures $ 166,000              $ 78,333               $ 244,333             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Tr ersansf  in $ -                          $ 166,000             $ 166,000             
Transfers outTransfers out (166,000)           (166 000)           -                                              (166,000)          (166 000)          

Total other financing sources and uses $ (166,000)             $ 166,000             $ -                         

Net change in fund balances $ -                          $ 244,333             $ 244,333             
Fund balances - beginning -                          145,007             145,007             
Fund balances - ending $ -                          $ 389,340             $ 389,340             

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 2) are different
because:

Net ota change in fund balances - t l governmental funds - per above $ 244,333             

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.  This is the amount by which the capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Joint tenancy allocation  $       4,703,862 
Depreciation expense              650,413 5,354,275          

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

(Increase) decrease in compensated absences  $           (56,344)
(Increase) decrease in OPEB liability               (42,000) (98,344)              

Change in net s i i asset  of governmental act vit es $ 5,392,264          
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CO F INIAUNTY O  NEW KENT, VIRG Exhibit 25

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

School Operating Fund
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Revenue fr tyom the use of money and proper $ 5,000             $ 5,000             $ 7,979             $ 2,979             
Charges for services 18,000           18,000           30,550           12,550           
Miscellaneous 68,000           74,000           236,042          162,042          
Intergovernmental revenues:

Local government 9,404,556       10,066,015     9,288,598       (777,417)        
Commonwealth 13,217,296     13,209,858     12,422,506     (787,352)        
Federal 2,087,709       2,394,234       2,470,108       75,874           

Total revenues $ 24,800,561     $ 25,767,107     $ 24,455,783     $ (1,311,324)     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Education $ 24,800,561     $ 25,601,107     $ 24,289,783     $ 1,311,324       
Total expenditures $ 24,800,561     $ 25,601,107     $ 24,289,783     $ 1,311,324       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures $ -                     $ 166,000          $ 166,000          $ -                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                     
Tr ersTr f tansf out $ans ers ou -                   $ (166 000)(166,000)      $ (166 000)(166,000)       $ -                   

Total other financing sources and uses $ -                     $ (166,000)        $ (166,000)        $ -                     

Net change in fund balances $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     
Fund balances - beginning -                     -                     -                     -                     
Fund balances - ending $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Exhibit 26

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with Variance with
Final Budget Final Budget

Positive Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Revenue from the use of money and property $ -                      $ -                       $ 3,991               $ 3,991               $ -               $ -                  $ -               $ -                   
Charges for services 650,000          650,000           568,357           (81,643)           -               -                  -               -                   
Miscellaneous -                      -                       10,264             10,264             -               -                  -               -                   
Intergovernmental revenues:

Commonwealth 13,354            13,354             12,082             (1,272)             -               -                  -               -                   
Federal 150,000          150,000           272,578           122,578           -               -                  -               -                   

Total revenues $ 813,354          $ 813,354           $ 867,272           $ 53,918             $ -               $ -                  $ -               $ -                   

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Education $ 813,354          $ 813,354           $ 788,939           $ 24,415             $ -               $ 166,000      $ -               $ 166,000       
Total expenditures $ 813,354          $ 813,354           $ 788,939           $ 24,415             $ -               $ 166,000      $ -               $ 166,000       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures $ -                      $ -                       $ 78,333             $ 78,333             $ -               $ (166,000)    $ -               $ 166,000       

School Cafeteria Fund Textbook Fund

Budgeted Amounts Budgeted Amounts

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ -                      $ -                       $ -                       $ -                       $ -               $ 166,000      $ 166,000  $ -                   

Total other financing sources and uses $ -                      $ -                       $ -                       $ -                       $ -               $ 166,000      $ 166,000  $ -                   

Net change in fund balances $ -                      $ -                       $ 78,333             $ 78,333             $ -               $ -                  $ 166,000  $ 166,000       
Fund balances - beginning -                      -                       145,007           145,007           -               -                   
Fund balances - ending $ -                      $ -                       $ 223,340           $ 223,340           $ -               $ -                  $ 166,000  $ 166,000       
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COUNTY EW ENT G OF N  K , VIR INIA Exhibit 27

Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 779,459                  
Land held for resale 721,508                  

Total current assets $ 1,500,967               
Total assets $ 1,500,967               

NET ASSETS
Unre rist cted $ 1,500,967               

Total net assets $ 1,500,967               
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COUNTY EW ENT G OF N  K , VIR INIA Exhibit 28

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:

Ot eher r venues $ 2,000                       
Total operating revenues $ 2,000                       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Contra vctual ser ices $ 11,756                     
Other charges 17,450                     

Total operating expenses $ 29,206                     

Operating income (loss) $ (27,206)                    

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest earnings $ 4,607                       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) $ 4,607                       

Change in net assets $ (22,599)                    

Total net assets - beginning 1,523,566                
Tota sl net asset  - ending $ 1,500,967                
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COUNTY EW ENT G OF N  K , VIR INIA Exhibit 29

Statement of Cash Flows
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts or f  miscellaneous items $ 2,000                       
Payments for operating activities (29,206)                    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (27,206)                    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intere est and dividends r ceived $ 4,607                       

Net s increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent $ (22,599)                    

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 802,058                   
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 779,459                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities:
O lperating income ( oss) $ (27,206)                    

Net u i i cash provided ( sed) by operating act vit es $ (27,206)                    

 
82



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 1 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

General property taxes:
Real ty axes proper  t $ 17,040,303   $ 17,040,303    $ 17,910,235   $ 869,932          
Real and personal public service corporation taxes 540,000        540,000         598,966        58,966            
Personal property taxes 2,956,890     2,956,890      3,358,767     401,877          
Mobile home taxes 13,279          13,279           31,793          18,514            
Machinery and tools taxes 255               255               44,921          44,666            
Penalties 132,000        132,000         165,054        33,054            
Interest 61,000          61,000           112,706        51,706            

Total general property taxes $ 20,743,727   $ 20,743,727    $ 22,222,442   $ 1,478,715       

Other local taxes:
Loc ales axesal s  and use t $ 1,000,000     $ 1,000,000      $ 956,832        $ (43,168)           
Communication sales tax 630,000        630,000         625,451        (4,549)             
Consumers' utility taxes 190,000        190,000         200,623        10,623            
Electric consumption taxes 55,000          55,000           62,513          7,513              
Business license taxes 637,500        637,500         481,408        (156,092)         
Motor vehicle licenses 465,000        465,000         485,257        20,257            
Bank stock taxes 18,500          18,500           32,458          13,958            
Taxes on recordation and wills 240,000        240,000         293,439        53,439            
Hotel and motel room taxesHotel and motel room taxes 10,000        10,000        10,000         10,000         13,363          13,363          3,363            3,363            
Admissions tax 1,000            1,000             2,325            1,325              

Total other local taxes $ 3,247,000     $ 3,247,000      $ 3,153,669     $ (93,331)           

Permits, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses:
Anim ical l enses $ 22,000          $ 22,000           $ 25,490          $ 3,490              
Transfer fees 600               600               687               87                   
Permits and other licenses 405,977        420,505         404,725        (15,780)           

Total permits, privilege fees, and regulatory
 licenses $ 428,577        $ 443,105         $ 430,902        $ (12,203)           

Fines and forfeitures:
Court i orf tures f nes and f ei $ 221,000        $ 221,000         $ 191,841        $ (29,159)           

Total fines and forfeitures $ 221,000        $ 221,000         $ 191,841        $ (29,159)           

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money $ 390,000        $ 390,000         $ 537,409        $ 147,409          
Revenue from use of property 229,110        229,110         248,861        19,751            

Total revenue from use of money and property $ 619,110        $ 619,110         $ 786,270        $ 167,160          
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 2 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Charges for services:

Excess l k  fees of c er $ 10,000          $ 10,000           $ 20,615          $ 10,615            
Charges for law enforcement and traffic control 3,978            3,978             3,734            (244)                
Charges for circuit court 56,266          56,266           56,509          243                 
Charges for courthouse security 80,000          80,000           82,290          2,290              
Charges for Commonwealth's Attorney 650               650               494               (156)                
Charges for other protection 3,200            3,200             2,543            (657)                
Charges for sanitation and waste removal 15,500          15,500           45,231          29,731            
Charges for parks and recreation 233,500        241,900         294,890        52,990            
Charges for sale of publications and

 commemorative material 3,000            3,000             2,490            (510)                
Total charges for services $ 406,094        $ 414,494         $ 508,796        $ 94,302            

Miscellaneous revenue:
Miscellaneous $ 10,000          $ 102,023         $ 127,801        $ 25,778            
Off-track betting proceeds 574,300        574,300         521,651        (52,649)           

Total miscellaneous revenue $ 584,300        $ 676,323         $ 649,452        $ (26,871)           

Recovered costs:
Pl pr ncoum point loan repay- ogram i me $ -                    $ 9,598             $ 9,598            $ -                      
Extension program sponsorship -                    4,787             5,237            450                 
9th j di i l t/l liti9th judicial court/localities 13 58613,586        13 58613,586         12 87412,874          (712)(712)              
Colonial Downs - fire/rescue standby -                    87,415           89,775          2,360              
Fire suppression -                    8,250             8,249            (1)                    
Other recovered costs -                    113,302         110,939        (2,363)             
Ambulance and rescue service -                    359,006         358,288        (718)                

Total recovered costs $ 13,586          $ 595,944         $ 594,960        $ (984)                

Total revenue from local sources $ 26,263,394   $ 26,960,703    $ 28,538,332   $ 1,577,629       

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:

Motor cl arri s' ax vehi e c er  t $ 35,866          $ 35,866           $ 49,336          $ 13,470            
Mobile home titling tax 2,000            2,000             9,975            7,975              
Motor vehicle rental tax 1,000            1,000             959               (41)                  
State recordation tax 82,805          82,805           105,076        22,271            
Personal property tax relief funds 2,217,883     2,217,883      2,217,883     -                      
Reduction in state aid to local governments (90,583)         (90,583)         (90,583)         -                      

Total noncategorical aid $ 2,248,971     $ 2,248,971      $ 2,292,646     $ 43,675            
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 3 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Revenue from the Commonwealth:  (Continued)

Categorical aid:
Shared expenses:

Commonwealth's attorney $ 232,185        $ 232,185         $ 217,081        $ (15,104)           
Sheriff 915,400        915,400         801,215        (114,185)         
Commissioner of revenue 105,400        105,400         96,080          (9,320)             
Treasurer 104,200        104,200         95,203          (8,997)             
Registrar/electoral board 42,650          42,650           41,909          (741)                
Clerk of the Circuit Court 188,000        232,557         218,536        (14,021)           
Total shared expenses $ 1,587,835     $ 1,632,392      $ 1,470,024     $ (162,368)         

Other categorical aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration $ 838,681        $ 381,092         $ 293,796        $ (87,296)           
Four for life grant 9,372            18,744           18,744          -                      
Emergency services grants 62,992          20,500           20,500          -                      
Virginia commission for the arts 4,500            4,500             4,500            -                      
VDH-OEMS grant -                    5,766             5,764            (2)                    
Other state grants -                    1,000             1,073            73                   
E-911 wireless 40,000          190,000         61,597          (128,403)         
Forfeited assets -                    -                    1,370            1,370              
Va. Domestic Violence grant 20,000          40,000           39,852          (148)                
Vi ti it tVictim-witness grant 39 40839,408        44 28744,287         43 54943,549          (738)(738)              
Fire programs 34,802          37,140           37,140          -                      
EPA grant -                    80,000           -                    (80,000)           
Litter control 6,337            5,125             5,125            -                      
Virginia sheriff's association grant -                    2,580             2,580            -                      
DMV animal friendly plates -                    502               502               -                      
Total other categorical aid $ 1,056,092     $ 831,236         $ 536,092        $ (295,144)         

Total categorical aid $ 2,643,927     $ 2,463,628      $ 2,006,116     $ (457,512)         

Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 4,892,898     $ 4,712,599      $ 4,298,762     $ (413,837)         

Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:

Public sist f nistr ion as ance and wel are admi at $ -                    $ 496,059         $ 568,319        $ 72,260            
Plum point grant -                    230,257         24,162          (206,095)         
VDH-OEMS - SHSP grant -                    40,150           40,150          -                      
DCJS grant -                    17,000           -                    (17,000)           
DMV - Smart, Safe and Sober -                    36,041           32,139          (3,902)             
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 4 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Revenue from the federal government: (Continued)

Categorical aid: (Continued)
Sheriff's A J G funds $ -                    $ -                    $ 39,801          $ 39,801            
Emergency management and response -                    187,560         30,655          (156,905)         
Justice assistance grants - ARRA -                    16,742           16,741          (1)                    
Bulletproof vest partnership program -                    2,726             2,468            (258)                
Chesapeake bay implementation grant -                    5,000             4,835            (165)                
FEMA safer grant - fire/rescue -                    231,473         229,209        (2,264)             

Total categorical aid $ -                    $ 1,263,008      $ 988,479        $ (274,529)         

Total revenue from the federal government $ -                    $ 1,263,008      $ 988,479        $ (274,529)         

Total General Fund $ 31,156,292   $ 32,936,310    $ 33,825,573   $ 889,263          

Special Revenue Funds:
Airport Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue fr tyom the use of proper $ 72,960          $ 72,960           $ 85,440          $ 12,480            

Total revenue from use of money and property $ 72,960          $ 72,960           $ 85,440          $ 12,480            

Charges for services:Charges for services:
Fuel/oil ales s $ 66,500          $ 75,408           $ 83,898          $ 8,490              
Airport access fees 600               600               1,090            490                 

Total charges for services $ 67,100          $ 76,008           $ 84,988          $ 8,980              

Miscellaneous revenue:
Ot scellher mi aneous $ 1,000            $ 1,000             $ -                    $ (1,000)             

Total miscellaneous revenue $ 1,000            $ 1,000             $ -                    $ (1,000)             

Total revenue from local sources $ 141,060        $ 149,968         $ 170,428        $ 20,460            

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:

Departm ati sent of Avi on grant $ 43,900          $ 100,751         $ 3,843            $ (96,908)           
Total categorical aid $ 43,900          $ 100,751         $ 3,843            $ (96,908)           

Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 43,900          $ 100,751         $ 3,843            $ (96,908)           

Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:

Air t mpor  i provement program $ 76,000          $ 134,325         $ -                    $ (134,325)         
Total categorical aid $ 76,000          $ 134,325         $ -                    $ (134,325)         

Total revenue from the federal government $ 76,000          $ 134,325         $ -                    $ (134,325)         

Total Airport Fund $ 260,960        $ 385,044         $ 174,271        $ (210,773)         
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 5 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Special Revenue Funds: (Continued)
Human Services Fund:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:

Categorical aid:
Compr iv ervic tehens e s es ac $ 1,450,004     $ 1,450,004      $ 566,694        $ (883,310)         

Total categorical aid $ 1,450,004     $ 1,450,004      $ 566,694        $ (883,310)         

Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 1,450,004     $ 1,450,004      $ 566,694        $ (883,310)         

Total Human Services Fund $ 1,450,004     $ 1,450,004      $ 566,694        $ (883,310)         

Meals Tax Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

Other local taxes:
Meals ax t $ 500,000        $ 508,658         $ 511,541        $ 2,883              

Total other local taxes $ 500,000        $ 508,658         $ 511,541        $ 2,883              

Total revenue from local sources $ 500,000        $ 508,658         $ 511,541        $ 2,883              

Total Meals tax Fund $ 500,000        $ 508,658         $ 511,541        $ 2,883              

Capital Projects Funds:
County Capital Improvements Fund:y p p

Miscellaneous revenue:
Ca rosh p ffers $ -                    $ 9,733             $ 189,926        $ 180,193          
Other miscellaneous -                    19,416           19,416          -                      

Total miscellaneous revenue $ -                    $ 29,149           $ 209,342        $ 180,193          

Total revenue from local sources $ -                    $ 29,149           $ 209,342        $ 180,193          
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 6 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Capital Projects Funds: (Continued)
County Capital Improvements Fund: (Continued)
Revenue from the federal government:

Categorical aid:
IS cycl eTEA - bi e rout $ -                    $ 34,460           $ 2,289            $ (32,171)           
ISTEA - village improvement grant -                    159,600         -                    (159,600)         
VDACS PDR grant -                    150,000         -                    (150,000)         

Total revenue from the federal government $ -                    $ 344,060         $ 2,289            $ (341,771)         

Total County Capital Improvements Fund $ -                    $ 373,209         $ 211,631        $ (161,578)         

School Construction Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of money $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,222            $ 1,222              

Total revenue from use of money and property $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,222            $ 1,222              

Total revenue from local sources $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,222            $ 1,222              

Total School Construction Fund $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,222            $ 1,222              

Total Primary Government $ 33,367,256   $ 35,653,225    $ 35,290,932   $ (362,293)         

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board:
School Operating Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue fr tyom the use of proper $ 5,000            $ 5,000             $ 7,979            $ 2,979              

Total revenue from use of money and property $ 5,000            $ 5,000             $ 7,979            $ 2,979              

Charges for services:
Tuiti s r sion and payment  f om other divi ons $ 18,000          $ 18,000           $ 30,550          $ 12,550            

Total charges for services $ 18,000          $ 18,000           $ 30,550          $ 12,550            

Miscellaneous revenue:
Ot scellher mi aneous $ 68,000          $ 74,000           $ 236,042        $ 162,042          

Total miscellaneous revenue $ 68,000          $ 74,000           $ 236,042        $ 162,042          

Total revenue from local sources $ 91,000          $ 97,000           $ 274,571        $ 177,571          
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 7 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board: (Continued)
School Operating Fund: (Continued)
Intergovernmental revenues:
Revenues from local governments:

Contri i r , rginiabut on f om County of New Kent  Vi $ 9,404,556     $ 10,066,015    $ 9,288,598     $ (777,417)         
Total revenues from local governments $ 9,404,556     $ 10,066,015    $ 9,288,598     $ (777,417)         

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:

Shar t ales axe of s ate s  t $ 2,708,816     $ 2,708,816      $ 2,497,178     $ (211,638)         
Basic school aid 7,599,578     7,599,578      7,162,044     (437,534)         
ISAEP (GED program) 7,859            7,859             7,859            -                      
Regular foster care 35,745          35,745           10,520          (25,225)           
Gifted and talented 72,712          72,712           74,406          1,694              
Remedial education 61,401          61,401           62,832          1,431              
English as a second language 7,639            7,639             4,068            (3,571)             
Special education 1,177,939     1,177,939      1,205,382     27,443            
Textbook payment 191,508        191,508         87,670          (103,838)         
Vocational education 56,554          56,554           57,872          1,318              
Social security fringe benefits 423,347        423,347         433,210        9,863              
Retirement fringe benefits 544,534        544,534         418,329        (126,205)         
Group life insurance fringe benefits 14,542          14,542           11,574          (2,968)             
State lottery payments 190,894        190,894          
Early reading intervention 32,771          32,771           30,950          (1,821)             
Homebound education 4,138            4,138             2,523            (1,615)             
Vocational education equipment 4,471            4,471             3,151            (1,320)             
At risk payments 17,288          17,288           17,365          77                   
Technology 154,000        154,000         131,757        (22,243)           
Standards of Learning algebra readiness 7,438            -                    7,438            7,438              
Mentor teacher program 2,004            2,004             5,337            3,333              
Other state funds 93,012          93,012           147               (92,865)           

Total categorical aid $ 13,217,296   $ 13,209,858    $ 12,422,506   $ (787,352)         

Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 13,217,296   $ 13,209,858    $ 12,422,506   $ (787,352)         

Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:

Title I $ 218,688        $ 218,688         $ 207,236        $ (11,452)           
Title I - ARRA -                    136,444         103,137        (33,307)           
Title VI-B, special education flow-through 847,254        847,254         646,295        (200,959)         
Title VI-B, special education flow-through - ARRA -                    150,000         217,585        67,585            
Vocational education 27,270          27,270           29,817          2,547              
Title VI-B, special education preschool 15,464          15,464           15,302          (162)                
Title VI-B, special education preschool - ARRA -                    20,081           3,448            (16,633)           
Technology literacy challenge 4,055            4,055             2,227            (1,828)             
Technology - ARRA -                    -                    1,018            1,018              
Title II - teacher quality 69,401          69,401           59,419          (9,982)             
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 1
Page 8 of 8

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010 (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board: (Continued)
School Operating Fund: (Continued)
Revenue from the federal government: (Continued)

Categorical aid: (Continued)
Dr r cug f ee s hool $ 7,577            $ 7,577             $ 3,239            $ (4,338)             
State fiscal stabilization funds 898,000        898,000         1,181,385     283,385          

Total categorical aid $ 2,087,709     $ 2,394,234      $ 2,470,108     $ 75,874            

Total revenue from the federal government $ 2,087,709     $ 2,394,234      $ 2,470,108     $ 75,874            

Total School Operating Fund $ 24,800,561   $ 25,767,107    $ 24,455,783   $ (1,311,324)      

School Cafeteria Fund:
Revenue from local sources:

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from the use of money $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,991            $ 3,991              

Total revenue from use of money and property $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,991            $ 3,991              

Charges for services:
Cafeteri alesa s $ 650,000        $ 650,000         $ 568,357        $ (81,643)           

Total charges for services $ 650,000        $ 650,000         $ 568,357        $ (81,643)           

Miscellaneo s re en eMiscellaneous revenue:
Ot scellher mi aneous $ -                    $ -                    $ 10,264          $ 10,264            

Total miscellaneous revenue $ -                    $ -                    $ 10,264          $ 10,264            
Total revenue from local sources $ 650,000        $ 650,000         $ 582,612        $ (67,388)           

Intergovernmental revenues:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:

Categorical aid:
School food program grant $ 13,354          $ 13,354           $ 12,082          $ (1,272)             

Total categorical aid $ 13,354          $ 13,354           $ 12,082          $ (1,272)             
Total revenue from the Commonwealth $ 13,354          $ 13,354           $ 12,082          $ (1,272)             

Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:

School food program grant $ 150,000        $ 150,000         $ 223,516        $ 73,516            
Commodities -                    -                    49,062          49,062            

Total categorical aid $ 150,000        $ 150,000         $ 272,578        $ 122,578          
Total revenue from the federal government $ 150,000        $ 150,000         $ 272,578        $ 122,578          

Total School Cafeteria Fund $ 813,354        $ 813,354         $ 867,272        $ 53,918            

Total Discretely Presented Component Unit -
 School Board $ 25,613,915   $ 26,580,461    $ 25,323,055   $ (1,257,406)      
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 1 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:
General government administration:
Legislative:
Boar sorsd of supervi $ 105,378        $ 122,852        $ 109,686        $ 13,166            

General and financial administration:
Count nistry admi ator $ 435,975        $ 413,748        $ 340,510        $ 73,238            
Legal services 303,360        314,027        282,845        31,182            
Central switchboard 26,247          26,078          24,697          1,381              
Commissioner of revenue 458,916        458,686        439,417        19,269            
Treasurer 353,459        371,378        369,280        2,098              
Financial services 449,640        447,462        433,408        14,054            
Department of information technology 428,079        477,270        399,548        77,722            
Human Resources 148,682        162,490        139,540        22,950            
Purchasing 216,911        215,059        186,245        28,814            
Other general and financial administration -                    33,302          18,842          14,460            
Total general and financial administration $ 2,821,269     $ 2,919,500     $ 2,634,332     $ 285,168          

Board of elections:
El toral fici sec  board and of al $ 173,888        $ 170,586        $ 148,317        $ 22,269            
Total board of elections $ 173,888        $ 170,586        $ 148,317        $ 22,269            

Total general government administrationTo  general governmen  admi ration $ 3 100 535,100,535   $ 3 212 938,212,938   $ 2 892 335,892,335    $ 320 603320,603         

Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circ t tui  cour $ 79,821          $ 79,821          $ 76,922          $ 2,899              
General district court 9,705            16,929          16,927          2                     
Sheriff 501,910        496,823        484,165        12,658            
Magistrate 2,732            2,732            1,070            1,662              
Juvenile and domestic relations district court 6,400            7,050            6,221            829                 
Clerk of the circuit court 308,138        352,695        312,054        40,641            
Victim and witness assistance 42,854          44,587          43,584          1,003              
Total courts $ 951,560        $ 1,000,637     $ 940,943        $ 59,694            

Commonwealth's attorney:
Commonwealth's tor at ney $ 316,698        $ 335,864        $ 330,115        $ 5,749              
Total commonwealth's attorney $ 316,698        $ 335,864        $ 330,115        $ 5,749              

Total judicial administration $ 1,268,258     $ 1,336,501     $ 1,271,058     $ 65,443            

Public safety:
Law enforcement and traffic control:
Sheriff $ 1,934,374     $ 2,082,907     $ 2,024,907     $ 58,000            
Grants programs -                    78,673          57,770          20,903            
School resource officer 120,787        121,453        115,743        5,710              
Total law enforcement and traffic control $ 2,055,161     $ 2,283,033     $ 2,198,420     $ 84,613            
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 2 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010  (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Public safety:  (Continued)
Fire and rescue services:
Vol escunteer r ue squads $ 83,532          $ 94,295          $ 86,982          $ 7,313              
State forestry service 8,449            7,179            7,178            1                     
Fire and emergency management 1,331,090     2,347,742     2,140,360     207,382          
Total fire and rescue services $ 1,423,071     $ 2,449,216     $ 2,234,520     $ 214,696          

Correction and detention:
Confi are is snement and c  of pr oner $ 476,180        $ 557,705        $ 555,827        $ 1,878              
Probation & pretrial 171,693        157,268        117,651        39,617            
Total correction and detention $ 647,873        $ 714,973        $ 673,478        $ 41,495            

Inspections:
Building $ 392,758        $ 339,184        $ 316,010        $ 23,174            
Total inspections $ 392,758        $ 339,184        $ 316,010        $ 23,174            

Other protection:
Anim rolal cont $ 226,720        $ 245,519        $ 210,857        $ 34,662            
E-911 657,705        735,555        589,970        145,585          
Total other protection $ 884,425        $ 981,074        $ 800,827        $ 180,247          

Total public safetyta  public safety $ 5 403 288,403,288   $ 6 767 480,767,480   $ 6 223 255,223,255    $ 544 225544,225         

Public works:
Sanitation and waste removal:
Refuse ollecti s c on and di posal $ 990,153        $ 1,078,286     $ 886,423        $ 191,863          
Total sanitation and waste removal $ 990,153        $ 1,078,286     $ 886,423        $ 191,863          

Maintenance of general buildings and grounds:
Gener tial proper es $ 879,458        $ 883,419        $ 748,717        $ 134,702          
Total maintenance of general buildings and grounds $ 879,458        $ 883,419        $ 748,717        $ 134,702          

Total public works $ 1,869,611     $ 1,961,705     $ 1,635,140     $ 326,565          

Health and welfare:
Health:
Suppl ocal th tmement of l  heal  depar ent $ 164,893        $ 171,825        $ 167,533        $ 4,292              
Total health $ 164,893        $ 171,825        $ 167,533        $ 4,292              
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 3 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010  (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Health and welfare:  (Continued)
Mental health and mental retardation:
Community ervic d s es boar $ 97,645          $ 97,645          $ 97,645          $ -                      
Total mental health and mental retardation $ 97,645          $ 97,645          $ 97,645          $ -                      

Welfare:
Public sist f nistr ion as ance and wel are admi at $ 1,110,994     $ 1,169,340     $ 1,020,515     $ 148,825          
Area agency on aging 4,083            4,083            4,083            -                      
Meals on wheels 3,500            3,500            3,500            -                      
Transportation for the elderly 52,582          52,582          52,582          -                      
Social service agency donations 33,720          33,720          33,720          -                      
Total welfare $ 1,204,879     $ 1,263,225     $ 1,114,400     $ 148,825          

Total health and welfare $ 1,467,417     $ 1,532,695     $ 1,379,578     $ 153,117          

Education:
Other instructional costs:
Contri i o o ty ollbut on t  c mmuni  c eges $ 3,524            $ 3,524            $ 3,524            $ -                      
Contribution to County School Board 9,404,556     10,066,015   9,288,598     777,417          
Total education $ 9,408,080     $ 10,069,539   $ 9,292,122     $ 777,417          

Parks, recreation, and cultural:
P k d tiParks and recreation:
Recr i seat on center  and playgrounds $ 503,626        $ 524,256        $ 474,882        $ 49,374            
Total parks and recreation $ 503,626        $ 524,256        $ 474,882        $ 49,374            

Cultural enrichment:
Fi tsne ar  center $ 9,000            $ 9,000            $ 9,000            $ -                      
Total cultural enrichment $ 9,000            $ 9,000            $ 9,000            $ -                      

Library:
Contri i o ibrarybut on t  regional l $ 184,530        $ 184,530        $ 184,530        $ -                      
Total library $ 184,530        $ 184,530        $ 184,530        $ -                      

Total parks, recreation, and cultural $ 697,156        $ 717,786        $ 668,412        $ 49,374            

Community development:
Planning and community development:
Community development $ 174,172        $ 173,804        $ 159,917        $ 13,887            
Zoning board 3,540            2,865            698               2,167              
Planning commission 38,179          35,883          34,100          1,783              
Plum Point housing rehab -                    351,694        27,905          323,789          
Planning and zoning 264,666        316,222        206,938        109,284          
Economic development 262,083        261,313        245,002        16,311            
Historic commission 16,075          16,025          824               15,201            
Total planning and community development $ 758,715        $ 1,157,806     $ 675,384        $ 482,422          
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 4 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010  (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

General Fund:  (Continued)
Environmental management:
Contri i o oil er i strictbut on t  s  and wat  conservat on di $ 13,525          $ 13,525          $ 13,525          $ -                      
Environmental management 233,732        239,277        212,830        26,447            
Wetlands board 4,665            4,215            2,353            1,862              
Litter control 6,337            5,319            4,958            361                 
Cooperative forestry and reforestation 4,975            4,975            4,836            139                 
Total environmental management $ 263,234        $ 267,311        $ 238,502        $ 28,809            

Cooperative extension program:
Ext i ficeens on of $ 66,393          $ 65,632          $ 50,535          $ 15,097            
Total cooperative extension program $ 66,393          $ 65,632          $ 50,535          $ 15,097            

Total community development $ 1,088,342     $ 1,490,749     $ 964,421        $ 526,328          

Total General Fund $ 24,302,687   $ 27,089,393   $ 24,326,321   $ 2,763,072       

Special Revenue Funds:
Airport Fund:
Current:
Public Works:
Salari ries and f nges $ 94,426          $ 94,426          $ 93,606          $ 820                 
Contractual services 24,000          13,074          7,501            5,573              
ElectricityElectricity 7,000          7,000          7,000          7,000          5,720           5,720           1,280             1,280             
Miscellaneous 76,413          88,177          83,105          5,072              
Total public works $ 201,839        $ 202,677        $ 189,932        $ 12,745            

Capital projects expenditures:
Air t mpor  i provement $ 151,000        $ 283,706        $ 1,500            $ 282,206          
Total capital projects $ 151,000        $ 283,706        $ 1,500            $ 282,206          

Total Airport Fund $ 352,839        $ 486,383        $ 191,432        $ 294,951          

Human Services Fund:
Health and welfare:
Welfare and social services:
Compr iv ervic tehens e s es ac $ 2,589,906     $ 2,587,989     $ 1,101,638     $ 1,486,351       
Virginia juvenile crime control act 6,750            20,500          6,750            13,750            
Total welfare and social services $ 2,596,656     $ 2,608,489     $ 1,108,388     $ 1,500,101       
Total health and welfare $ 2,596,656     $ 2,608,489     $ 1,108,388     $ 1,500,101       

Total Human Services Fund $ 2,596,656     $ 2,608,489     $ 1,108,388     $ 1,500,101       
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 5 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010  (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Debt Service Fund:
Debt service:
Princi etirepal r ment $ 2,725,945     $ 4,705,786     $ 4,705,781     $ 5                     
Interest and other fiscal charges 3,306,838     3,370,893     3,369,345     1,548              
Total Debt Service Fund $ 6,032,783     $ 8,076,679     $ 8,075,126     $ 1,553              

Capital Projects Funds:
County Capital Improvements Fund:
Capital projects expenditures:
Count tal tsy capi  projec $ 899,226        $ 5,547,103     $ 2,529,783     $ 3,017,320       
School buses 255,345      228,846      228,846       -                     
Total capital projects $ 1,154,571     $ 5,775,949     $ 2,758,629     $ 3,017,320       

Total County Capital Improvements Fund $ 1,154,571     $ 5,775,949     $ 2,758,629     $ 3,017,320       

School Construction Fund:
Capital projects expenditures:
Sc tshool projec $ -                    $ 1,170,422     $ 713,309        $ 457,113          
Total capital projects $ -                    $ 1,170,422     $ 713,309        $ 457,113          

Total School Construction Fund $ -                    $ 1,170,422     $ 713,309        $ 457,113          

Total Primary Government $ 34,439,536   $ 45,207,315   $ 37,173,205   $ 8,034,110       

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board
School Operating Fund:
Education:
Administration of schools:
Sc dhool boar $ 36,308          $ 36,308          $ 35,128          $ 1,180              
Executive administration services 479,475        463,590        425,609        37,981            
Total administration of schools $ 515,783        $ 499,898        $ 460,737        $ 39,161            

Instruction costs:
El ec c sementary and s ondary s hool $ 18,226,862   $ 18,395,930   $ 17,927,879   $ 468,051          
Total instruction costs $ 18,226,862   $ 18,395,930   $ 17,927,879   $ 468,051          

Operating costs:
Att th ervicendance and heal  s es $ 1,477,642     $ 1,484,522     $ 1,380,775     $ 103,747          
Pupil transportation 2,142,704     2,201,617     2,215,730     (14,113)           
Operation and maintenance of school plant 2,437,570     2,962,810     2,248,332     714,478          
Facilities -                    56,330          56,330          -                      
Total operating costs $ 6,057,916     $ 6,705,279     $ 5,901,167     $ 804,112          

Total education $ 24,800,561   $ 25,601,107   $ 24,289,783   $ 1,311,324       

Total School Fund $ 24,800,561   $ 25,601,107   $ 24,289,783   $ 1,311,324       
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COUNTY , NIA OF NEW KENT  VIRGI Schedule 2
Page 6 of 6

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010  (Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board (Continued)
Cafeteria Fund:
Education:
School food services:
Admi strati cni on of s hool food program $ 813,354        $ 813,354        $ 739,877        $ 73,477            
Commodities -                    -                    49,062          (49,062)           
Total school food services $ 813,354        $ 813,354        $ 788,939        $ 24,415            
Total Cafeteria Fund $ 813,354        $ 813,354        $ 788,939        $ 24,415            

Textbook:
Education:
In nstructio $ -                    $ 166,000        $ -                    $ 166,000          

Total Textbook $ -                    $ 166,000        $ -                    $ 166,000          

Total Discretely Presented Component Unit - 
School Board $ 25,613,915   $ 26,580,461   $ 25,078,722   $ 1,501,739       
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Statistical Section

Contents Tables

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
the County's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 1 - 4

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the County's ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 5-8

Debt Capacity
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of

 the County's current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to issue
debt in the future. 9-11

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the County's financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. 12-13

Operating Information
These tables contain information about the County's operations and resources
to help the reader understand how the County's financial information relate to
the services the County provides and the activities it performs. 14-16

  Sources:   Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.  The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in
fiscal year 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning
in that year.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 1
Net Assets by Component
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

 
Governmental activities
 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,387,629$         9,820,196$        12,228,885$        15,038,906$        9,438,366$         16,407,609$         15,885,375$    24,889,762$    
 Restricted 124,409              286,512             529,641               823,127               -                      -                       5,017,970        -                  
 Unrestricted 11,557,580         12,205,461        12,306,601          16,968,552          17,196,160         17,921,278           22,836,534      21,701,270      
Total governmental activities net assets 20,069,618$       22,312,169$      25,065,127$        32,830,585$        26,634,526$       34,328,887$         43,739,879$    46,591,032$    

Business-type activities
 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,444,454$         11,615,019$      13,004,622$        12,838,155$        19,983,157$       35,637,527$         38,497,889$    52,595,933$    
 Unrestricted 1,963,202           3,411,101          5,204,171            11,624,152          43,534,175         31,615,532           28,769,945      19,181,071      
Total business-type activities net assets 11,407,656$       15,026,120$      18,208,793$        24,462,307$        63,517,332$       67,253,059$         67,267,834$    71,777,004$    

Primary Government
 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 17,832,083$       21,435,215$      25,233,507$        27,877,061$        29,421,523$       52,045,136$         54,383,264$    77,485,695$    
 Restricted 124,409              286,512             529,641               823,127               -                      -                       5,017,970        -                  
 Unrestricted 13,520,782         15,616,562        17,510,772          28,592,704          60,730,335         49,536,810           51,606,479      40,882,341      
Total Primary government net assets 31,477,274$       37,338,289$      43,273,920$        57,292,892$        90,151,858$       101,581,946$       111,007,713$  118,368,036$  

Note:
(1) Data is presented from fiscal year 2003 when the County implemented GASB Statement 34.  Ultimately this schedule will contain information 
for the last ten fiscal years.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 2
Net Assets by Component Page 1 of 2
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Expenses
Governmental activities
  General government administration 1,772,644$         1,266,621$        1,447,448$        2,135,653$         2,467,397$           1,897,867$         3,112,985$         3,178,178$         
  Judicial administration 542,644              557,455             573,244             1,148,168           1,414,736             1,369,100           1,340,241           1,281,668           
  Public safety 3,724,372           4,960,805          5,939,781          4,797,876           5,669,671             5,941,239           6,448,840           6,974,536           
  Public works 1,347,566           1,389,480          2,079,328          634,629              1,562,298             1,821,422           2,029,548           2,111,602           
  Health and welfare 1,775,012           1,967,934          2,035,533          2,001,494           2,730,201             2,789,425           2,549,020           2,470,269           
  Community development 721,495              1,060,039          58,215               820,618              998,293                7,691,487           5,617,649           15,413,852         
  Parks, Recreation and cultural 141,314              146,726             404,051             375,468              138,908                680,412              764,787              707,331              
  Education 6,869,308           8,398,078          9,216,426          8,606,853           23,299,435           1,728,272           1,389,121           1,017,515           
  Interest and other financial charges 138,065              123,893             138,407             292,157              2,632,446             3,334,033           3,211,074           3,141,450           
Total governmental activities 17,032,420$       19,871,031$      21,892,433$      20,812,916$       40,913,385$         27,253,257$       26,463,265$       36,296,401$       

Business-type activities
  Water and Sewer 1,858,732$         1,050,475$        1,512,621$        1,847,797$         2,373,385$           2,396,236$         2,892,413$         2,665,738$         
  Bottoms Bridge -                      -                     143,985             598,797              538,689                -                      932,255              1,053,599           
Total business-type activities 1,858,732$         1,050,475$        1,656,606$        2,446,594$         2,912,074$           2,396,236$         3,824,668$         3,719,337$         

    Total primary government expenses 18,891,152$       20,921,506$      23,549,039$      23,259,510$       43,825,459$         29,649,493$       30,287,933$       40,015,738$       

Program Revenues
Governmental activities
  Charges for services:
    General government 459,965$            515,998$           854,141$           976,674$            -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    
    Judicial administration 96,268                100,828             100,630             108,277              401,236                386,857              393,169              351,749              
    Public safety 69,306                14,978               14,638               118,371              694,944                670,915              467,676              437,179              
    Public works 141,390              150,040             131,431             160,223              112,478                69,744                110,879              45,231                
    Health and welfare 982                     -                     -                     -                      -                        -                      -                      -                      
    Parks, recreation and cultural 59,941                -                     64,347               74,350                125,355                247,457              238,455              294,890              
    Community development -                      -                     -                     -                      328                       6,462                  2,440                  87,478                
    Education -                      -                     55,875               208,170              -                        -                      -                      -                      
  Operating grants and contributions 4,639,646           4,858,074          5,290,164          3,121,241           3,760,077             3,940,686           3,534,316           3,541,020           
  Capital Grants and contributions 39,060                239,954             952,147             421,375              311,342                700,673              428,223              26,451                
  Total business-type activities 5,506,558$         5,879,872$        7,463,373$        5,188,681$         5,405,760$           6,022,794$         5,175,158$         4,783,998$         

Business-type activities
  Charges for services:
    Water and Sewer 1,286,095$         2,511,216$        2,629,494$        7,427,792$         37,719,032$         2,993,759$         3,094,791$         4,155,390$         
    Bottoms Bridge -                      -                     27,918               382,589              492,327                599,004              271,412              98,928                
  Operating grants and contributions 441,000              -                     -                     -                      44,289                  -                      -                      -                      
  Capital grants and contributions 44,375                670,748             1,769,979          141,200              1,021,455             947,934              -                      3,798,166           
  Total business-type activities 1,771,470$         3,181,964$        4,427,391$        7,951,581$         39,277,103$         4,540,697$         3,366,203$         8,052,484$         

     Total primary government program revenues 7,278,028$         9,061,836$        11,890,764$      13,140,262$       44,682,863$         10,563,491$       8,541,361$         12,836,482$       
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 2
Net Assets by Component Page 2 of 2
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities (11,525,962)$       (13,991,159)$       (14,429,060)$       (15,624,235)$       (35,504,705)$       (21,230,463)$       (21,258,107)$       (31,512,403)$       
Business-type activities (87,262)                2,131,489            2,770,785            5,504,987            36,365,029          2,144,461            (458,465)              4,333,147            
Total primary government net expense (11,613,224)$       (11,859,670)$       (11,658,275)$      (10,119,248)$      860,324$            (19,086,002)$      (21,716,572)$       (27,179,256)$      

General Revnues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities:
Taxes
  Property taxes 10,328,886$        11,501,765$        12,870,154$        13,891,200$        17,808,606$        18,678,094$        22,352,347$        22,330,764$        
  Other local taxes 2,410,149            2,746,469            2,861,365            3,972,970            4,095,757            4,305,199            4,093,622            3,665,210            
Proffer revenues 59,205                 128,789               243,902               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Investment earnings 203,020               189,284               322,551               390,396               2,717,504            2,427,528            1,631,096            872,932               
Miscellaneous 697,245               1,061,389            885,652               1,422,398            1,523,291            1,144,452            305,112               858,794               
Non-categorical aid from the Commonwealth -                       -                       -                       2,404,781            2,515,587            2,375,270            2,286,922            6,635,296            
Loss on disposal of net assets -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (5,719)                  -                       -                       
    Transfers -                       -                       (1,606)                  (18,773)                12,001                 -                       -                       560                      
Total governmental activities 13,698,505$        15,627,696$        17,182,018$        22,062,972$        28,672,746$        28,924,824$        30,669,099$        34,363,556$        

Business-type activities
  Taxes -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     30,542$               52,012$               94,877$               112,973$             
  Investment earnings 3,176                   2,340                   195,955               729,754               1,681,641            1,539,254            378,363               63,610                 
  Miscellaneous 10,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
  Transfers -                       -                       1,606                   18,733                 (12,001)                -                       -                       (560)                     
Total business-type activities 13,176$               2,340$                 197,561$             748,487$             1,700,182$          1,591,266$          473,240$             176,023$             
    Total primary government 13,711,681$        15,630,036$        17,379,579$       22,811,459$       30,372,928$       30,516,090$       31,142,339$        34,539,579$       

Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities 2,172,543$          1,636,537$          2,752,958$          6,438,737$          (6,831,959)$         7,694,361$          9,410,992$          2,851,153$          
Business-type activities (74,086)                2,133,829            2,968,346            6,253,474            38,065,211          3,735,727            14,775                 4,509,170            
Total primary government 2,098,457$          3,770,366$          5,721,304$         12,692,211$       31,233,252$       11,430,088$       9,425,767$          7,360,323$         

Note:
(1) Data is presented from fiscal year 2003 when the County implemented GASB Statement 34.  Ultimately this schedule will contain information for the last ten years.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 3

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General fund
  Reserved -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                         38,111$              42,394$                324,244$              296,700$              
  Unreserved 4,027,560        4,494,567        4,649,809        5,561,288            7,489,255           8,365,163             8,828,235             8,409,015             
Total general fund 4,027,560$      4,494,567$      4,649,809$     5,561,288$         7,527,366$        8,407,557$          9,152,479$           8,705,715$          

All other governmental funds
  Reserved for: -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                         34,577,687$       11,635,215$         5,017,970$           4,405,293$           
     Construction -                       -                       -                       -                           -                          -                            1,629,190             31,734                  
     Prepaid items
  Unreserved, reported in:
    Special revenue funds -                   9,600               9,600               1,817,891            420,906              514,657                275,033                450,208                
    Capital projects funds 8,027,668        7,811,791        7,512,308        14,001,281          14,227,604         13,488,892           10,802,647           10,674,722           
    Debt service funds -                   -                   -                   -                       3,255,757           2,784,806             1,093,216             1,821,150             
Total all other governmental funds 8,027,668$      7,821,391$      7,521,908$     15,819,172$       52,481,954$      28,423,570$        18,818,056$         17,383,107$        

Note:
(1) Data is presented from fiscal year 2003, consistent with earlier schedules from when the County implemented GASB
statement 34.  Ultimately this schedule will contain information for the last ten fiscal years.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 4

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years (1)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Revenues
General property taxes 10,287,896$       11,552,349$       12,705,548$       14,146,386$       17,523,220$        18,678,094$        22,029,662$        22,222,442$        
Other local taxes 2,410,149           2,746,469           2,861,365           3,972,970           4,095,757           4,305,199           4,093,622           3,665,210           
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory 
licenses 426,524              504,554              671,713              689,055              669,615              660,112              459,232              430,902              
Fines and Forfeitures 98,588                154,322              180,150              239,856              221,938              212,547              219,372              191,841              
Revenue from use of money and 
property 233,428              217,099              360,183              688,101              2,624,902           2,259,565           1,631,096           872,932              
Charges for services 253,542              277,290              312,774              716,023              445,708              508,776              564,015              593,784              
Miscellaneous 826,341              1,003,548           1,131,483           992,979              1,523,291           1,144,452           1,011,475           858,794              
Recovered costs 3,475                 4,493                 16,864                147,995              509,553              533,865              736,896              594,960              
Intergovernmental:
  Commonwealth 3,485,155           4,141,660           4,526,958           4,748,765           5,535,817           5,685,369           5,384,875           4,869,299           
  Federal 808,688              956,368              1,715,353           896,803              984,524              1,331,260           864,586              990,768              
Total revenues 18,833,786$       21,558,152$       24,482,391$       27,238,933$       34,134,325$        35,319,239$        36,994,831$        35,290,932$        

Expenditures
General government administration 1,695,880$         1,742,309$         1,931,326$         1,992,187$         2,298,557$          2,838,389$          2,966,220$          2,892,335$          
Judicial administration 484,227              517,043              594,240              1,096,622           1,333,063           1,334,679           1,271,699           1,271,058           
Public Safety 3,258,851           3,988,242           4,828,250           4,678,449           5,349,980           5,875,647           5,803,309           6,223,255           
Public works 1,322,235           1,537,519           2,334,661           1,682,663           1,623,329           1,693,001           1,797,806           1,825,072           
Health and welfare 1,782,126           1,983,080           2,066,373           1,983,586           2,718,814           2,804,957           2,536,125           2,487,966           
Education 7,059,977           7,327,368           8,389,668           8,168,710           8,356,402           9,674,192           10,199,591          9,292,122           
Community development 820,170              1,007,176           752,097              834,077              1,090,833           615,715              656,906              668,412              
Parks, recreation and cultural 98,811                100,140              387,751              362,439              475,968              1,410,997           1,290,168           964,421              
Capital projects 2,688,742           1,530,016           2,057,914           7,604,394           20,382,379          39,636,653          12,079,368          3,473,438           
Debt service
  Principal 271,867              750,069              774,354              762,357              903,226              2,124,007           3,697,636           4,705,781           
  Interest and other fiscal charges 138,065              123,893              138,407              292,157              2,533,194           3,098,123           3,556,595           3,369,345           
Bond issuance costs -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      109,899              -                      -                      
Total Expenditures 19,620,951$       20,606,855$       24,255,041$       29,457,641$       47,065,745$        71,216,259$        45,855,423$        37,173,205$        

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (787,165)$           951,297$            227,350$            (2,218,708)$        (12,931,420)$      (35,897,020)$      (8,860,592)$        (1,882,273)$        

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 2,420,743$         2,388,343$         2,170,296$         5,337,482$         6,996,327$          6,872,077$          11,739,565$        13,193,093$        
Transfers out (2,420,743)          (3,078,911)          (2,171,902)          (5,356,255)          (6,984,326)          (6,872,077)          (11,739,565)        (13,192,533)        
Issuance of bonds - - - 12,212,201 56,862,447 9,859,103 - -Issuance of bonds                                                                         12,212,201       56,862,447        9,859,103                                                          
Bond issuance premium -                         -                         -                         133,832              2,185,831           388,337              -                          -                          
Refunding of bonds -                         -                         -                         (2,596,515)          (7,500,000)          2,395,106           -                          -                          
Sale of capital assest -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          76,281                -                          -                          
Total other financing sources (uses) -$                       (690,568)$           (1,606)$              9,730,745$         51,560,279$        12,718,827$        -$                        560$                   

  Net change in fund balances (787,165)$           260,729$            225,744$            7,512,037$         38,628,859$        (23,178,193)$      (8,860,592)$        (1,881,713)$        

Debt service as a percentage of
  noncapital expenditures 2.50% 5.10% 4.60% 4.83% 13.07% 17.50% 25.33% 22.63%

Note:
(1) Data is presented from fiscal year 2003, consistent with earlier schedules from when the County implemented GASB
statement 34.  Ultimately this schedule will contain information for the last ten fiscal years.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 5
Principal Real Property Taxpayers
Current and Nine Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 
Taxpayer Rank Valuation (1) Valuation Rank Valuation (2) Valuation

New Kent Farms LLC 1 57,618,300$               2.310%
City of Newport News 2 25,191,700                 1.010% 1 25,733,100$           2.788%
Colonial Downs Holdings Inc 3 24,859,900                 0.997% 2 25,370,909             2.748%
NKP LB5 LLC 4 19,087,200                 0.765%
Kinney Jonathan C. Trustee 5 18,069,800                 0.725%
NKP LB4 LLC 6 15,446,000                 0.619%
Kentland Investments LLC 7 12,971,100                 0.520%
Patriot's Landing Mgmt Corp. 8 11,021,200                 0.442%
The Stitzer - INGO Co. 9 9,660,700                   0.387%
Terry/Peterson Residential 10 8,287,600                   0.332%
Chesapeake Forest Products 3 22,739,000             2.463%
Golf Trust of America, LP 4 8,318,500               0.901%
Goodall, Marjorie R 5 5,712,100               0.619%
Healthcare Virginia, Inc. 6 5,483,800               0.594%
Bluegreen Properties of Virginia 7 4,122,500               
Shannon, Elizabeth R 8 3,884,900               0.421%
Oaklawn Plaza, Inc 9 3,646,000               0.395%
Ylonen, Charles S 10 3,213,200               0.348%
Allied Finance Co LTD Partnership III

Total 202,213,500$            8.108% 82,490,909$           8.936%

Total Assessed Valuation of RE 2,494,012,256$         100.000% 923,131,600$         100.000%

Notes:
(1) Based on January 1, 2009 Real Estate Assessments Less Land Use
(2) Based on January 1, 2000 Real Estate Assessments Less Land Use

2010 2001
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 6
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxes Levied Adjustments Collections
Fiscal for the Percentage to Levy in Total In Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year Amount (1) of Levy Subsequent Years Adjusted Levy Years Amount (1) of Levy

2010 18,150,753$   17,481,715$  96.31% -$                       18,150,753$    -$             17,481,715$       96.31%
2009 17,543,105 16,927,583 96.49% (7,501)                    17,535,605 364,478       17,292,061         98.61%
2008 14,683,271 14,228,315 96.90% 6,381                     14,689,652 379,720       14,608,035         99.44%
2007 13,684,954 13,233,449 96.70% (135)                       13,684,819 431,637       13,665,085         99.86%
2006 10,871,475 10,576,954 97.29% 40,571                   10,912,046 325,686       10,902,640         99.91%
2005 9,769,591 9,544,778 97.70% 13,879                   9,783,469 233,911       9,778,689          99.95%
2004 8,790,161 8,531,094 97.05% 4,535                     8,794,696 261,619       8,792,713          99.98%
2003 8,030,689       7,780,025 96.88% 4,896                     8,035,585 253,643       8,033,668          99.98%
2002 7,435,561       7,213,919 97.02% 7,243                     7,442,804 227,667       7,441,586          99.98%
2001 7,077,293       6,939,073     98.05% 6,425                     7,083,717 143,506       7,082,579          99.98%

Notes:
(1) Exclusive of penalties and interest.
*Includes data for Real Estate taxes only.  Personal Property not included.
*Notes are presented on a fiscal year and cash basis.

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 7

Taxable
Residential/ Total Less: Total Taxable Total Estimated Assessed Value 

Fiscal Agricultural Commercial Assessed Land-Use Assessed Direct Actual as a % of Actual
Year Property (4) (5) Property (4) Value Property (4) Value Tax Rate (3) Value (1) Taxable Value 

2010 2,372,385,106$  188,049,050$    2,560,434,156$     66,421,900$     2,494,012,256$     0.73$          2,454,736,472$ 101.60% (2)
2009 2,249,924,409    171,828,270      2,421,752,679       58,656,600       2,363,096,079       0.73            2,325,881,968   101.60% (2)
2008 1,485,801,900    127,861,119      1,613,663,019       42,639,800       1,571,023,219       0.93            1,626,318,032   96.60% (2)
2007 1,370,706,073    118,498,742      1,489,204,815       43,772,100       1,445,432,715       0.93            2,409,054,525   60.00% (2)
2006 1,268,710,900    113,057,998      1,381,768,898       43,690,200       1,338,078,698       0.81            1,760,629,866   76.00% (2)
2005 1,200,737,250    118,947,531      1,319,684,781       41,611,100       1,278,073,681       0.76 1,431,213,529   89.30% (2)
2004 994,033,200       111,266,313      1,105,299,513       36,598,900       1,068,700,613       0.81 1,064,442,842   100.40% (2)
2003 944,125,500       98,381,790        1,042,507,290       36,074,100       1,006,433,190       0.79 1,216,968,791   82.70% (2)
2002 901,636,300       94,133,895        995,770,195          36,079,900       959,690,295          0.77 1,123,759,128   85.40% (2)
2001 866,938,500       91,471,100        958,409,600          35,278,000       923,131,600          0.72 1,043,086,554   88.50% (3)

Notes:
Real property is the County's primary local source revenue.  Assessment information for other property taxes is provided on the Table 8
(1) Estimated value of real estate based on sales ratio percentage for the corresponding tax years as computed by the Virginia Department of Taxation
(2) Ratios Based on Estimations provided by the State Department of Taxation
(3) Tax rate per $100 of assessed value.
(4) Source, Real Estate Assessments from Commissioner of Revenue.
(5) Includes Land Use Exemptions.

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Real Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 8
Assessed Value of Taxable Property Other than Real Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Personal Machinery Public
Year Property (1) & Tools (1) Aircraft (1) Service (2,3) Total

2010 155,957,292$            18,000$             1,352,404$         82,047,884$           239,375,580$          
2009 170,220,143              18,000               1,271,150           74,410,649             245,919,942            
2008 156,913,939              18,000               1,298,750           44,828,759             203,059,448            
2007 145,406,962              21,600               971,000              52,291,778             198,691,340            
2006 138,448,093              21,600               1,018,500           62,909,522             202,397,715            
2005 118,496,255              31,699               1,072,000           71,062,752             190,662,706            
2004 113,096,654              2,117,755          642,600              58,674,214             174,531,223            
2003 99,611,366                38,188               719,600              66,114,328             166,483,482            
2002 103,628,115              38,188               719,600              60,897,685             165,283,588            
2001 97,584,495                3,500                 778,020              66,391,934             164,757,949            

Notes:
Real property shown on Table 7 is the County's primary local source revenue. Assessment information for other property taxes is provided abov
  for additional reference.
(1) Source, Assessments from Commissioner of Revenue.
(2) Public Service Corporation property assessments performed by the State Corporation Commission.
(3) Includes Real Estate
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 9
Direct Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Real Personal Machinery
Year Estate Property & Tools Aircraft

2010 0.73$    3.75$       1.50$      0.75$    
2009 0.73      3.75         1.50        0.75      
2008 0.93      3.75         3.00        0.75      
2007 0.93      3.75         3.00        0.75      
2006 0.81      3.75         3.00        0.75      
2005 0.76      3.75         3.00        0.50      
2004 0.81      3.75         3.00        0.50      
2003 0.79      3.75         3.00        0.50      
2002 0.77      3.75         3.00        0.50      
2001 0.72      3.75         3.00        1.25      

Notes:
Per $100 of assessed value.  There are no overlapping property tax rates
with other governments.

Public Service
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 10
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-Type
Activities

State Per
General Literary Capital Lease Total Percentage Capita

Fiscal Obligation Funds Lease Revenue Notes Revenue Primary of Personal Personal
Year Bonds Loans Obligations Bond Payable Bonds Government Income Income (1)

2001 $ 2,899,333 $ 800,000 $ 398,216 $ 2,165,000 $ 126,304 $ -                  $ 6,388,853 1.54% $ 29,961
2002 2,628,690 700,000 365,309 1,975,000 94,728 -                  5,763,728 1.36% 29,865
2003 2,254,495 600,000 330,019 1,770,000 63,152 -                  5,017,666 1.11% 30,581
2004 3,268,850 500,000 292,170 175,000 31,576 -                  4,267,597 0.89% 31,433
2005 2,721,663 400,000 251,579 120,000 2,596,515 17,675,000     23,764,757 4.59% 32,476
2006 4,575,039 300,000 208,047 2,360,000 7,500,000 17,675,000     32,618,086 5.93% 33,000
2007 11,530,439 200,000 378,222 51,897,177 -                17,675,000     81,680,838 13.61% 34,813
2008 17,076,570 100,000 -                56,959,655 -                17,310,000     91,446,225 14.77% 34,927
2009 16,085,397 -                   -                54,353,091 -                16,940,000     87,378,489 N/A N/A
2010 14,953,146 -                   -                50,779,662 -                16,555,000     82,287,808 N/A N/A

Note:  Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) Population data for 2001 through 2009, and personal income and per capital personal income data for 2001 through 2008 is obtained from the Bureau of Economic 
Analysis, U. S. Department of Commerce
     The population estimate for 2010 was obtained from the Virginia Employment Commission

Governmental Activities
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 11
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of
General State Total  General General Bonded 

Fiscal Obligation Literary Fund General Bonded Debt Debt to Assessed
Year Bonds Loans Bonded Debt Per Capita Real Property Value

2001 $ 2,899,333                   $ 800,000             $ 3,699,333           $ 209                    0.39%
2002 2,628,690                   700,000             3,328,690           185                    0.33%
2003 2,254,495                   600,000             2,854,495           153                    0.27%
2004 3,268,850                   500,000             3,768,850           213                    0.34%
2005 2,721,663                   400,000             3,121,663           171                    0.24%
2006 4,575,039                   300,000             4,875,039           275                    0.35%
2007 11,530,439                 200,000             11,730,439         669                    0.79%
2008 17,076,570                 100,000             17,176,570         963                    1.06%
2009 16,085,398                 -                     16,085,398         901                    0.66%
2010 14,953,146                 -                     14,953,146         800                    0.60%

Note:  Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the
  financial statements.

 
(a) See Table 7 for property value data
(b) Population data can be found in Table 12
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 12
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
Personal Capita
Income Personal Unemployment School

Population (in thousands) Income Rate Enrollment
Year (1) (1) (1) (2) (3)

2001 13,883         $ 415,951          $ 29,961       2.9 2,403           
2002 14,194         423,904          29,865       3.8 2,455           
2003 14,761         451,412          30,581       3.8 2,546           
2004 15,314         481,367          29,315       3.6 2,626           
2005 15,939         517,636          32,476       3.3 2,637           
2006 16,659         549,740          33,000       3.0 2,721           
2007 17,245         600,351          34,813       2.9 2,781           
2008 17,731         619,296          34,927       3.3 2,784           

2009 (Provisional) (6) 17,857         N/A N/A 6.9 (4) 2,854           

2010 (7) 18,681         N/A N/A 7.2 (5) 2,769           

(1) Bureau of Economic Analysis
(2) U.S. Department of Labor Statistics - Unemployment Rate by County, Not Seasonally Adjusted at June of each year
(3) Virginia Department of Education Fall Membership Reports (divison totals by grade)
      Fall Membership is the number of students enrolled in public school on September 30th of each year
(4) Revised 8-12-10 by the Virginia Department of Education Fall Membership Reports (divisions totals by grade)
(5) New Kent County School Board
(6) Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service, Demographics and Workforce Section
(7) Virginia Employment Commission
N/A - This information was unavailable.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 13
Principal Employers
Current and Nine Years Ago

2010* 2001*
Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total
County County

Employer Employees Rank Employment** Employees Rank Employment**

New Kent County School Board 250 to 499 1 250 to 499 1
AHS Cumberland Hospital 100 to 249 2 250 to 499 2
County of New Kent 100 to 249 3 100 to 249 3
Food Lion 100 to 249 4 50 to 99 5
County of Henrico 100 to 249 6
CCC Transportation LLC 50 to 99 5
Curtis Contracting Incorporated 50 to 99 7
Bruce Howard Contracting Inc. 50 to 99 8
Comfort Keepers 160 50 to 99 9
McDonald's 50 to 99 10 20 to 49 9
Winn Dixie 50 to 99 4
Allied Pallet Company (formerly VA Carolina Pallet) 50 to 99 6
Impact Management Service 50 to 99 7
Basic Construction Co LLC 20 to 49 8
Direct Wood Products 20 to 49 10

Source: Virginia Employment Commission
*Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW)

Data for 2010: 1st Quarter 2010
Data for 2001: 1st Quarter 2001

**The Virginia Employment Commission is precluded from disclosing the actual number of
employees per the Confidential Information Protection and Statistical Efficiency Act - Title V
of Public Law 107-347.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 14
Full-Time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Seven Fiscal Years

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
General government: 
Clerk of the Board 4.5 4.5 4 3.5 3 2 2
Commissioner of the Revenue 6 6 6 4 4 4 4
Treasurer 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Finance 4 4 6 6.5 5 4 4
Human Resources 2 2 1 1 0 0 0
Information Technologies 3 3 3 2 2 2 1
Registrar 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
County Attorney 2 2.5 2 2 2 0 0
Total General Government 27.5 28 28 24 21 17 16

Judicial Administration:
Clerk of the Circuit Court 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
General District Court 0 1 1 1
Victim's Witness 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Commonwealth Attorney 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 2 2 2
Total Judicial Administration 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8 8 8

Public Safety:
Sheriff and Animal Control 39 39 37 45 36 35 35
Fire and Emergency Mgmt. 16 13 10 10 8 8 8
Total Public Safety 55 52 47 55 44 43 43

Public Works:
Airport 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Refuse 10 10 10 9 1 1 1
Other Public Works 8 8 8 5 6 6 6
Total Public Works 19 19 19 15 8 8 8

Health and Welfare:
Social Services 12.5 12.5 13.5 13.5 10 10 10
Human Services 0 1 1 1

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Total Health and Welfare 12.5 12.5 13.5 13.5 11 11 11

Community Development
Planning/Environmental/Permitting 9 9 11 8 8 5 5
Building Inspections 5 5 7 7 8 6 5
Extension 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Economic Development 2 2 1 1 1 1 0
Total Community Development 16 16 19 16 17 12 10

Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Parks and Recreation 4 4 4 4 1 2 2
Total Parks, Recreation and Cul 4 4 4 4 1 2 2

Total Governmental 142.5 140 139 136 110 101 98

Public Utilities
Water/Sewer 16 16 13 13 11 9 6
Total Public Utilities 16 16 13 13 11 9 6

Total Other 16 16 13 13 11 9 6

Total County 158.5 156 152 149 121 110 104

Source: Human Resources Department, Human Resource Specialist
Only seven years of data is available. Ultimately this schedule will contain information for the last ten fiscal years
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 15
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years (where available)

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Public Safety (1)
Fire and rescue companies 1 1 1 1 1            1            1            1            1 1
Number of Stations 4 3 3 3 3            3            3            3            3 3

Public Utilities (2)
Active Vehicles 17 17 9 9 9            5            6            * * *

Refuse Collection (3)
Refuse collected (tons per year) 6,195 6,449 7,202 7,801 8,474     * * * * *
Number of refuse sites 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 * * *
Recyclables Collected (tons per year) 432 946 549 468 460 * * * * *

Parks, Recreation & Cultural (4)
Land acres 275 275 275 259 159 158 158 158 158 0
Trails (miles) 5 5 5 5 3 3 3 3 3 3
Number of visitors 24,750 24,750 22,620 4,325 * * * * * *

Library (5)
Material circulated 43,230 41,589 47,850 60,435 55,958 48,860 43,013 40,036 34,282 32,207
Library patrons 25,937 24,123 24,160 5,750 * * * * * *

Education (6)
Elementary Schools
     Buildings 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Primary Schools
     Buildings 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Middle Schools 
     Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
     Capacity 750 750 522 522 522 522 522 522 522 522
High Schools
     Buildings 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
     Capacity 1200 1200 800 800 800 800 800 800 800 800
Number of school buses 60 60 63 60          60          57          54          47          47          45          

Sources:
(1)  New Kent County Fire Department
(2)  Financial Services
(3)  New Kent County General Services
(4)  New Kent County Parks and Recreation
(5)  Heritage Public Library

Fiscal Year

(5)  Heritage Public Library
The Heritage Public Library in the past has served two localities, New Kent County and Charles City County.
FY09 is the first full year the library has recorded separate statistics for New Kent and Charles City County.

(6)  New Kent County Public Schools

* - This information is not available.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA Table 16
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Seven Fiscal Years

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Sheriff's Department (1)
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
Patrol units 19 19 19 17 14 14 14
Total Calls Dispatched 31,094 34,087 38,302 31,604 25,712 19,667 18,052
Calls dispatched for traffic 4,043 3,503 3,298 3,368 2,863 2,850 3,132
Calls dispatched for rescue 1,707 1,620 1,353 1,106 1,701 2,776 2,060
Number of criminal warrants served 1,161 1,129 1,146 1,335 1,243 1,212 1,088
Number of civil warrants and traffic notices 7,165 8,424 8,576 9,215 7,639 6,989 5,192

Volunteer Fire and Rescue (2)
Companies 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Stations 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Emergency responses 2,891 1,418 1453** 2,480 1,132 1,021 2,300
Fires extinguished 224 289 213** 886 557 732 945
Inspections 688 594 312 101 103 112 104

Parks and recreation (3)
Number of parks maintained 7 7 6 6 N/A N/A N/A
Park acreage owned by the County 275 275 275 252 N/A N/A N/A
Park acreage leased 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A N/A

Library (4)
Number of libraries 1 1 1* 1 1 1 1
Number of bookmobiles (non-operational) 0 1 1 1 1 1 1

Public Utilities (5)
Water
    Daily average consumption (gallons) 572,212 697,149 811,600 694,000 648,000 344,568 380,000
    Number of connections 1,990 1,918 1,887 1,732 1,576 1,384 1,200
Sewer
    Average daily sewage treatment 320,000 340,000 328,000 256,000 188,000 135,000 200,000

(thousands of gallons)
    Number of connections 809 733 725 579 422 268 125

* For FY07-08 Heritage Public Library has been operating out of 2 branches. One in New Kent County and one in Charles City County.

** Volunteer Fire & Rescue numbers have decreased due to a new Fire Record Management System.  Historically, the county documented all
calls at each station which gave credit multiple times for a single incident This new Management System eliminates the double counting

Fiscal Year

calls at each station which gave credit multiple times for a single incident.  This new Management System eliminates the double counting.

Sources:

(1)  New Kent County Sheriff's Office
(2)  New Kent County Fire Department
(3)  New Kent County Parks & Recreation
(4)  Heritage Public Library 
(5)  New Kent County Public Utilities

Only seven years of data is available.
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS           A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
 

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and  
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
To The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors 
County of New Kent 
New Kent, Virginia 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
County of New Kent, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the 
County of New Kent, Virginia’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 
15, 2010.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public 
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of New Kent, Virginia’s internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
County of New Kent, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the County of New Kent, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of New Kent, Virginia’s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
We noted other matters that we have reported to management of the County of New Kent, Virginia, in a 
separate letter dated November 15, 2010. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Supervisors, others within 
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Richmond, Virginia 
November 15, 2010 
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS           A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
 

 
 

Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each 
 Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

 
 
To The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors 
County of New Kent 
New Kent, Virginia 
 
Compliance 
 
We have audited County of New Kent, Virginia’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of County of New Kent, Virginia’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.  The County 
of New Kent, Virginia’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
County of New Kent, Virginia’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County of New 
Kent, Virginia’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of New Kent, 
Virginia’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the County of New Kent, Virginia’s compliance with those 
requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the County of New Kent, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.   
 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the County of New Kent, Virginia, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of New Kent, Virginia’s 
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of New Kent, Virginia’s internal control over 
compliance. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance  (Continued) 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a control deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, and Board of Supervisors, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
Richmond, Virginia 
November 15, 2010 
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Agency or FY2010
Fe l ran Passdera  G tor/ -through CFDA Pass-through Federal 
Gran Pr m etor/ ogra  Titl Number Number Expenditures

Department of Agriculture:
Department of Social Services:

Pass Through Payments:
State admin matching grants for the supplmental nutrition assistance program 10.561 0010109/0010110 165,446$           
State admin matching grants for the supplmental nutrition assistance program - 
ARRA 10.561 0010109/0010110 5,186                 

Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Pass Through Payments:

School breakfast program 10.553 17901-40591 48,829
National school lunch program 10.555 17901-40623 174,687
Commodities - National school lunch program 10.555 17901-45707 49,062

Department of Homeland Security:
Direct Payments:

Assistance to firefighter's grant 97.044 229,209
Recovery Act - emergency food & shelter national board program 97.114 5,059

Department of Emergency Services:
Pass Through Payments:

Emergency management performance grants 97.042 77501-52749 27,932
Emergency management and response-enhance current EOC 97.042 77501-52749 1,110
State homeland security program 97.073 77501-52707 40,150
Non-profit security program 97.008 77501 95
Nonprofit security program - training 97.008 77501 1,518

Department of Justice
Direct Payments:

Recove c dwa yry A t - E rd B rne memorial justice assistance grants to local governments 16.804 16,741
Bu elletproof v st partnership program 16.607 2,468

Compensation Board:
Pass Through Payments:

Edward Byrne memorial justice assistance grant (JAG) program/grants to states 
and territories - recovery act 16.803 30712 39,801

Department of Health and Human Services:
Department of Social Services:

Pass Through Payments:
Temporary assistance for needy families 93.558 0400109/0400110 88,810
Refugee and entrant assistance - state administered program 93.566 0500109/0500110 315
Low income home energy assistance 93.568 0600409/0600410 5,428
Child care and development block grant 93.575 0770109/0770110 35,297
Child care mandatory & matching funds of the child care &
 development fund 93.596 0760109/0760110 47,704
Foster care - Title IV-E 93.658 1100109/1100110 41,809
Adoption assistance 93.659 1120109/11201110 20,257
Social services block grant 93.667 1000109/1000110 29,841
Chafee foster care independence program 93.674 9150109/9150110 747
Medical assistance program 93.778 1200109/1200110 101,524
Promoting safe & stable families 93.556 0950109/0950110 991
Children's health insurance program 93.767 0540109/0540110 6,317
Child welfare services grant 93.645 0900109/090110 296
Chaffee education & training program 93.599 9160108/9130109 120
Recovery Act - child care and development block grant 93.713 0740109/0780109 13,172
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Agency or FY2010
Fe l ran Passdera  G tor/ -through CFDA Pass-through Federal 
Gran Pr m etor/ ogra  Titl Number Number Expenditures

Department of Education:
Department of Education:

Pass Through Payments:
Title I grants to local educational agencies 84.010 17901-42901 207,236$           
Special education - grants to states 84.027 17901-43071 646,295
Career and technical education - bsaic grants to states 84.048 17901-61095/61159 29,817
Special education - preschool grants 84.173 17901-62521 15,302
Improving teacher quality state grants 84.367 17901-61480 59,419
Safe and drug free schools and communities - state grants 84.186 17901-60511 3,239
Education technology state grants 84.318 17901-61600 2,227
Recovery Act - state fiscal stabilization funds - education state grants 84.394 17901-62532 1,181,385
Recovery Act - education technology state grants 84.386 17901-60897 1,018
Recovery Act - Title I grants to local educational agencies 84.389 17901-42913 103,137
Recovery Act - special education preschool grants 84.392 17901-61247 3,448
Recovery Act - special education grants 84.391 17901-61245 217,585

Environmental Protection Agency:
Office of Water

Pass Through Payments:
Recovery Act - Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 51503-90301 2,393,269

Office of Water
Pass Through Payments:

Chesapeake Bay Program 66.466 51503 4,835

Department of Housing & Urban Development:
Department of Housing & Community Development:

Pass Through Payments:
   Community Development Block Grants/State's Program 14.228 53305-50796 24,162

Department of  Transportation:
Department of Transportation:

ISTEAGrant
Highway Planning & Construction 20.205 60507 2,289

Department of Motor Vehicles:
Pass Through Payments:

State & Comm. Highway Safety (Section 402) 20.600 60507-59250/50192 32,139

           Totals 6,126,723$       

See the accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note A - Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of the County of New Kent, Virginia under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2010. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the County of New Kent, Virginia, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the County of
New Kent, Virginia.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles
for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note C - Relationship to Financial Statements

Federal expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the County's basic financial
statements as follows:

Intergovernmental federal revenues per the basic financial statements:
Primary government:Primary government:

General Fund $ 988,479      
Capital Projects Funds:

County Capital Improvements Fund 2,289          
Proprietary Fund:

Utilities Fund 2,393,269   
   Total pr yimar  government $ 3,384,037   

Component Unit Public Schools:
School Operating Fund $ 2,470,108   
School Cafeteria Fund 272,578      

   Total component unit public schools $ 2,742,686   
       Total federal expenditures per basic financial
             st satement $ 6,126,723   

Total federal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards $ 6,126,723   
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section I–Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

a.       Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

b.       Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none
reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs   

a.       Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

b.       Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none
reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.027/84.173/84.391/84.392 Special Education Cluster
84.010/84.389 Title I Cluster

84.394 State Fiscal Stabilization Funds -
  Education State Grants - Recovery Act

66.458 Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State
  Revolving Funds - Recovery Act

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

Section II–Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III-Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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COUNTY OF NEW KENT, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

There were no prior year findings and questioned costs.
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